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The Honorable S. James Otero

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE WESTERN DISTRICT OF WASHINGTON AT SEATTLE

JOHN SCANNELL,

Plaintiff

vs.

WASHINGTON STATE BAR
ASSOCIATION, BOARD OF GOVERNORS
OF WSBA, RUSSELL M. AOKI, MARCINE
ANDERSON, JAMES E. BAKER,
STANLEY A. BASTIAN, ERON BERG,
LIZA E. BURKE, ANTHONY BUTLER,
BRIAN L. COMSTOCK, ELLEN
CONEDERA DIAL, LONNIE DAVIS,
LOREN S. ETENGOFF,  G. GEOFFREY
GIBBS, ANTHONY D. GIPE, LORI S.
HASKELL, DAVID S. HELLER, NANCY L.
ISSERLIS, MARK A. JOHNSON, PETER J.
KARADEMOS, LELAND B. KERR,
DOUGLAS C. LAWRENCE, CARLA C.
LEE, ROGER A. LEISHMAN,
CATHERINE L. MOORE, SALVADOR A.
MUNGIA, KRISTIN OLSON, KATHLEEN
O’SULLIVAN, PATRICK A. PALACE,
ERIC C. DE LOS SANTOS, MARC A.
SILVERMAN, S. BROOKE TAYLOR,
STEVEN G. TOOLE, EDWARD F. SHEA,
JR., BRENDA WILLIAMS, JASON T.
VAIL,

Defendants

No. 12-0683 SJO

SECOND AMENDED COMPLAINT
FOR DECLARATORY AND
INJUNCTIVE RELIEF; DENIAL OF
CIVIL RIGHTS UNDER 42 USC
§1983; WRIT OF MANDAMUS, AND
WRIT OF PROHIBITION

JURY DEMANDED
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SCOTT BUSBY, JAMES M. DANIELSON,
JEFFERS DANIELSON SONN  &
AYLWARD P.S., FELICE CONGALTON

GAIL MCMONAGLE, LARRY KUZNETZ,
AMANDA ELIZABETH LEE, DAVID
HELLER, BRIAN ROMAS, ZACHARY
MOSNER, THOMAS CENA, JONI
MONTEZ, THOMAS ANDREWS,
TAMARA DARST, SUSAN B. MADDEN,
CLEMENTINE HOLLINGSWORTH,
WILLIAM J. CARLSON, SETH FINE,
CARRIE M. COPPINGER, HENRY (TED)
STILES, NORRIS HAZELTON, THOMAS
CENA, MICHAEL BAHN, MELINDA
ANDERSON, SHEA C. MEEHAN, NORMA
L. UREÑA, GRACE GREENWICH, ,
JAMES V. HANDMACHER RYAN
BARNES ROBERT WELDON, JULIE
SHANKLAND, , BRIAN ROMAS, SHEA C.
MEEHAN

Defendants

INTRODUCTION

COMES NOW the plaintiff, John Scannell (“Scannell”) who respectfully files: claims

against the defendants for Civil Rights violations pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1983; and for

declaratory and injunctive relief under federal law and state law,.

I.  PARTIES, JURISDICTION, VENUE

1.  Venue and jurisdiction are proper under RCW 7.16.160, RCW 7.16.300, RCW

7.24.010, RCW 7.40.010, CR 30, and ELC 5.5, RCW 4.12.010, RCW 4.12.020, and RCW

4.12.025, 29 U.S.C §1331, §1334, §1343. Venue in this district is appropriate pursuant to Title
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28, United States Code, §1391, because the pertinent events took place in this district and 18

U.S.C. §1965(a).

2.  This action is for injunctive and declaratory relief pursuant to 42 U.S.C. §1883 and 28

U.S.C. §2201 against the above-named individuals in their respective individual capacities for

their actions under the color of state law in violation of plaintiffs right to due process under the

Fourth and Fourteenth Amendments and his right to counsel under the Sixth and Fourteenth

Amendments to the United States Constitution.

3. Scannell alleges a violation of his constitutional rights under 42 USC 1983 and seeks

declaratory and injunctive relief under this statute.

4. Scannell is entitled to sue for and obtain injunctive relief under 15 U.S.C. § 26.

5.  This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over Scannell’s state law claims pursuant to

the Court’s supplemental jurisdiction, 28 U.S.C. §1367.

6. Scannell is a resident of Kitsap County.

7.  Defendant Washington State Bar Association ( “WSBA”) is a private organization

existing under the laws of the State of Washington, having its principal office and place of

business in King County, Washington, within the territorial jurisdiction of this court.  For

purposes of this action the WSBA is a “person.”

8.  Defendant Scott Busby (“Busby”) is a disciplinary counsel of the WSBA, and is

named in this action in both his official and individual capacities.  He resides within the

territorial jurisdiction of this court.

9.  Felice Congalton (“Congalton”) is a disciplinary counsel of the WSBA who screens

bar complaints.

10 .  Defendant Gail McMonagle, (“McMonagle”), was the vice chair, chairperson and is

a member of the Disciplinary Board of the WSBA.
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11.  Defendant Board of Governors (“BOG”) is the governing body of the WSBA, having

its principal office and place of business located in King County, Washington, within the

territorial jurisdiction this court.  The following defendants were at times material hereto officers

and/or members of the BOG,: Russell M. Aoki, Marcine Anderson, James E. Baker, Stanley A.

Bastian, Eron Berg, Liza E. Burke, Anthony Butler, Brian L. Comstock, Ellen Conedera Dial,

Lonnie Davis, Loren S. Etengoff,  G. Geoffrey Gibbs, Anthony D. Gipe, Lori S. Haskell, David

S. Heller, Nancy L. Isserlis, Mark A. Johnson, Peter J. Karademos, “Leland” B. Kerr, Douglas C.

Lawrence, Carla C. Lee, Roger A. Leishman, Catherine L. Moore, Salvador A. Mungia, Kristin

Olson, Kathleen O’Sullivan, Patrick A. Palace, Eric C. de los Santos, Marc A. Silverman, S.

Brooke Taylor, Steven G. Toole, Edward F. Shea, Jr., Brenda Williams, and Jason T. Vail

(hereinafter referred to as the “BOG defendants”).  Upon information and belief, most, if not all,

of the acts committed by them took place within the territorial jurisdiction of this court and all of

them are residents of the State of Washington.

12.  Defendant James M. Danielson (“Danielson”) and Jeffers Danielson Sonn, and

Aylward P.S.( “Jeffers-Danielson firm”) are independent contractors and are being sued in that

capacity.  Upon information and belief, most, if not all, of the acts committed by them took place

within the territorial jurisdiction of this court.  The Jeffers-Danielson firm is a law firm and is

accountable for the acts of Danielson, who is both a lawyer and a shareholder in that firm.

13.  Defendants Gail McMonagle, Larry Kuznetz, Amanda Elizabeth Lee, David Heller,

Brian Romas, Zachary Mosner, Thomas Cena, Joni Montez, Thomas Andrews, Tamara Darst,

Susan B. Madden, Clementine Hollingsworth, William J. Carlson, Seth Fine, Carrie M.

Coppinger, Henry (Ted) Stiles, Norris Hazelton, Thomas Cena, Michael Bahn, Melinda

Anderson, Shea C. Meehan, Norma L. Ureña, Grace Greenwich, James V. Handmacher Ryan

Barnes Robert Weldon, Julie Shankland, Brian Romas, Shea C. Meehan (“Disciplinary Board

Defendants”) were or are members of the Disciplinary Board of the WSBA.
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14.  The actions at issue took place in King County and Thurston County, Washington,

within the territorial jurisdiction of this court.

15.  With respect to the facts and circumstances of the Washington lawyer discipline

system described below, defendants have and continue to act under the color of state law.  All

defendants are being named in both their official and individual capacities for acts committed in

their supervisory and administrative capacities for acts committed in judicial, supervisory, and

administrative capacities.

SUMMARY OF ALLEGATIONS

A.  Overview:

16.  Scannell, a lawyer admitted to the WSBA of the State of Washington, asserts that the

WSBA Washington Lawyer Discipline System on its face and as applied, violates his and other

attorneys their right to due process under the First, Fourth, Sixth and Fourteenth Amendments to

the United States Constitution.

17. Scannell further asserts that the individually named defendants have, in bad faith,

conspired to deprive him and others of their vested right to practice law through a number of

acts.

18. Scannell is pursuing every available option to continue his legal practice in the State

of Washington.  He is presently admitted to and practicing in the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals.

At the time of the events described herein Scannell was and continues to represent persons

before the Ninth Circuit (including Paul King, another attorney whose role in the events at issue

is described below).

19.  As outlined in this complaint, Scannell has attempted to exercise his constitutional

rights, including his right to preserve the attorney client privilege, on behalf of Paul King and

other clients his rights to due process, his right to be free from unlawful search and seizure, his
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right to free speech, his right to represent clients in administrative proceedings, and supporting

those who are discriminated against by their race in administrative proceedings.

20. Scannell continues to face imminent loss of his constitutional rights as a consequence

of the actions of the defendants.  The defendants have repeatedly threatened Scannell, his

associates with unconstitutional subpoenas and continue to threaten additional disciplinary

actions against Scannell even though he  is already disbarred in Washington courts.  The

defendants continuously harass him, in a manner which effectively prevents him from obtaining

reinstatement and which increases his litigation costs.   The WSBA encourages other members of

the state bar to treat the plaintiff as a pariah in the legal profession and allows them  to commit

violations of the rules of professional conduct against him with impunity. The WSBA and other

members of the conspiracy refuse to acknowledge his status as an attorney admitted to practice

in the Ninth Circuit, and have falsely informed his clients and associates that it is unethical

and/or illegal for him to practice in the Ninth Circuit, thereby interfering with his business

relationships  Scannell’s efforts to exercise the attorney-client privilege on behalf of his clients

(described  in the original case) continue to be an issue over which the WSBA threatens

Scannell’s remaining practice. The WSBA’s actions constitute a de facto group boycott of

Scannell’s firm.

B.  Plenary Control

21.  The Washington State Supreme Court asserts, with respect to lawyer discipline, that

its authority is plenary (total) in character.  The court not only controls the judicial process, but

the legislative and executive, prosecutorial, administrative,  and police power functions as well.

22.  The system of lawyer discipline administered by the Washington Supreme Court is,

as a matter of routine practice, tainted by multiple ex parte contacts among and between the

various arms of the WSBA and the Court.
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23.  No meaningful safeguards prevent ex parte contacts from routinely occurring

between the decision makers who impose lawyer discipline (up to and including disbarment)

and, e.g., the investigatory and prosecutorial arms of the Office of Disciplinary Counsel

(“ODC”).  This necessarily results in conflicts of interest, lack of due process, and violations of

the appearance of fairness doctrine and separation of powers.

24.  In the instant case, the use of joint common counsel by the ODC, the disciplinary

counsel/prosecutor,  a hearing officer assigned to one of the cases resulted in a tainted decision

being made before Plaintiff’s case was even heard and therefore prevents the plaintiff and other

attorneys from receiving any kind of fair hearing in the future before impartial decision makers.

25.  The plaintiff’s case and other attorneys cases were discussed in ex parte meetings

between the defendants and Washington State Supreme Court prior to any hearings or decisions

taking place.

26.  By asserting plenary control and then approving  ex parte contacts, among and

between the purportedly independent arms of the disciplinary system it created and oversees, the

Court has destroyed its status as an independent judiciary.  The plaintiff is entitled to have his

case heard by an independent judiciary under both  the Washington and the United States

Constitutions.

27.  The judicial and WSBA defendants have mixed their judicial, legislative, and

prosecutorial roles with their police investigative and administrative roles to the extent that these

purportedly independent roles have become virtually indistinguishable which violates the

separation of powers mandated by both the United States and Washington State Constitution.

28.  The WSBA defendants claim that the disciplinary process is judicial in nature, but it

is not.  It lacks essential due process elements that are necessary to make it constitutionally

sound.
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C. The nature of the defendants’ misconduct.

29. Scannell contends that in practice, the disciplinary process is not judicial in nature

and lacks due process  in the following specific instances with respect to all persons who are

tried before it:

(a)  The issuance of secret subpoenas and notices of deposition (to, e.g.,
clients and associates of attorneys under investigation) without notice to any
parties (i.e. subjects of the investigations);

(b)  Lack of due process concerning how and by who a motion to
terminate a deposition is to be heard;

(c)  Enhanced penalties assessed for asserting appeals in pursuit of due
process rights and in contesting secret subpoenas;

(d)  Lack of due process as a consequence of WSBA’s use of common
counsel for the disciplinary board (i.e. decision makers) and disciplinary counsel
(i.e. prosecutors), which results in unfettered ex parte contacts and effectively
allows  the case to decided before it is even heard.

(e)  Extensive and pervasive ex parte contacts between the Washington
State Supreme Court, its clerks, the disciplinary board, and the disciplinary
counsel prevent due process.

(f)  Failure and refusal, on the part of the Washington Supreme Court, to
process and rule on appeals by parties who have been victimized by WSBA’s
disciplinary process;.

(g)  Washington’s Disciplinary system Refuses to recognize the right to
attorney client privilege and thus the denial of right to counsel in both bar
disciplinary cases and in criminal cases (e.g., Scannell and others are required to
submit attorney client privileged information on their clients who they are
representing before the board.

(h)  Denial of Fourth Amendment and Fourteenth Amendment rights to
due process (as Washington case law precedent allows defendants to be found
guilty of conduct they have not been charged with).
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(i)   Denial of due process (under Washington law a respondent can be
found guilty of conduct for which there was no factual support in the record).

(j)  The use of vague and ambiguous standards which does not put
attorneys on notice as to what conduct is forbidden or subject to discipline.
Under Washington law, an attorney can simply be accused of being frivolous,
without any objective standard as to what that term means.

(k)  Denial of due process (as when attorneys are investigated and tried for
conduct in other jurisdictions, by using Washington law, when the court has
explicitly, in its rules stated, that the rules of the foreign jurisdiction are to be
used.)

(l)  Denial of due process (as when documents are not allowed into
evidence or into the record with no avenue for appeal).

(m) Spreading false and defamatory information about the plaintiff and
others on its web site (in effect blacklisting him) without any meaningful method
for contesting it.

30.  Through the use of informal and ad hoc policies, the WSBA has committed the

following constitutional equal protection violations which are not subject to review by the

Washington State Supreme Court.

a)  Evading or avoiding the prosecution of RPC violations committed by

attorneys employed as prosecutors .

b)  Evading or avoiding the prosecution of RPC violations committed by

attorneys whose practice consists of representing criminal defendants.

Evading or avoiding the prosecution of RPC violations committed by

attorneys employed by large and prestigious law firms.

c)  Refocusing prosecution resources and efforts away from those attorneys listed

above, toward  solo practitioners (who  comprise only 30% of practicing

attorneys).
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d)  Focusing prosecution resources and efforts toward Afro-American attorneys

and attorneys from other minority groups.

e)  Failing and refusing  to prosecute attorneys who commit bar violations against

the plaintiff, which impedes the plaintiff’s ability to conduct business as an

attorney in the Ninth Circuit.

f)  Spreading false and defamatory information about the plaintiff on its web site

(in effect blacklisting him) without any meaningful method for contesting it.

g)  Failing to prosecute members of the WSBA disciplinary process by the use of

a rubber stamp conflicts officer who refuses to prosecute the defendants and

other similarly situated staff associated with the disciplinary process.

h)  The use of hearsay during administrative hearings as allowed under

Washington law prevents the attorneys from any right to effective cross

examination.

i)  Preselecting hearing officers by appointment and by refusal to reappoint so

that targeted attorneys have little hope of avoiding conviction even though

they might be innocent

31.  The defendants have organized an enterprise which dominates and controls the

WSBA and prevents it from performing its functions as intended by law.  The WSBA

masquerades as a state agency that claims to protect the public against unethical attorneys

through a judicial or quasi-judicial process that is unbiased, neutral, and fair.  But in fact, the

organization has become beholden to the goals of the enterprise which is to allow favored

attorneys to engage in unethical conduct without impediment, while singling out disfavored

attorneys for discipline that is imposed in an unconstitutional and illegal manner, and through the

use of wire fraud, bribery, extortion, intimidation and fear.
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32.  The defendants made numerous misrepresentations to the plaintiff and to the public

that the WSBA  was a legitimate enforcement agency whose purpose was to protect the public

against unethical attorneys.  In making these representations, the defendants made wide use of

the mails, telephones and the internet as part of their scheme.  The representations to the public

are material in that the public relies on these representations in making choices on how to deal

with unethical counsel.   The public is led to believe that if their counsel acts in violation of the

Rules of Professional Conduct, the counsel will be punished.  Based on the misrepresentations of

the defendants members of the public forego more expensive but effective remedies, such as

malpractice actions. As a result of the defendants’ misrepresentations, the public at large is

misled into believing that  it will be provided with ethical attorneys but instead is given a

whitewash that will be used against citizens should they try a more legitimate legal action.

33. Similarly, attorneys, such as the plaintiff, relied upon the representations of the

defendants and consequently assumed the WSBA would ensure the existence of a level playing

field where ethical attorneys would be rewarded for their conduct and unethical attorneys would

be removed from the profession.  The plaintiff, specifically relied upon these representations and

consequently believed that attorney client privileged conversations would be subject to the

attorney-client privilege, and that asserting the privilege would not be arbitrarily  and baselessly

re-characterized by the defendants as unethical “obstruction”.  The plaintiff incorrectly assumed

that he and other attorneys would have access to a fair and impartial  a judicial or quasi-judicial

process, in which to present their defenses.

34.  Both the public and attorneys rely on the representation that the disciplinary system

is in fact a fair “judicial” or “quasi-judicial” process.

35.  These representations by the defendants and their enterprise were and are false.

36.  In fact, the organization, collects dues from its members in return for protecting its

members from the public who are dissatisfied with the services of the member lawyers.  The
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defendants do this with a legal mechanism which purports to be some kind of court process

which gives the illusion of disciplining attorneys.  In fact, the process is a mockery of the

judicial process specifically designed to waste the public’s efforts in sham proceedings.  The

organization charges less than 4% of attorneys who are complained of compared to other states

where 30% of those complained of are charged.

37.  Those who are charged are almost always solo practitioners.  Those who are charged

are either egregious cases that can’t be ignored, minorities, and attorneys who fail to cooperate

with the illicit activities of the defendants.

38.  Hearing officers are ill trained and are pre-chosen to obtain convictions of opponents

of the defendants.  The defendants readily admit and in fact pride themselves over the fact they

have a 97% conviction rate.

39.  Hearing officers are unpaid.  At least one hearing officer who acquitted was not

chosen again.  Since Hearing officers are unpaid, they are prone to corruption because  they seek

other forms of compensation provided by the defendants.  These forms of compensation include

soliciting bribes, obtaining recommendations for promotions, such as becoming prosecutors, as

well as seeking dismissal or leniency for their own unethical conduct.

40.  Some results are predetermined by some of the defendants who will target political

enemies for investigation.  Attempts to bribe a hearing officer have been made.  Ex parte

contacts between the hearing examiners, the Disciplinary Board, and the Washington State

Supreme Court are extensive and pervasive even though such actions are forbidden under the

Rules of Professional Conduct, and the Code of Judicial Conduct.

41.  These ex parte contacts take place in private meetings organized by the defendants as

officers, committee members, and as Disciplinary Board members of the WSBA.  These

meetings were not organized or controlled or adequately supervised by the Washington State

Supreme Court.  The WSBA contends that these meetings generally are not open to the public,
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not publicized to the public and are not subject to the open meetings act.  The defendants

actively attempt to prevent any documents being subject to public disclosure.

42.  While the Washington State Supreme Court claims these meetings are legislative in

nature, they are not.  They are simply an opportunity for the defendants to meet among

themselves, so they can maintain their control over the disciplinary process by predetermining

convictions  of their enemies while covering for unethical actions of their friends.  The

defendants also use the meetings as an opportunity to organize opposition to the legitimate goals

of the American Bar Association.

43.  It is highly relevant that the defendant WSBA BOG have organized these meetings.

The Washington State Supreme Court claims that it has responded to the ABA’s concern that the

BOG would exert political influence over the disciplinary process by proclaiming on numerous

occasions to keep the BOG out of the disciplinary process.  Instead, when the public is not

watching, the Washington State Supreme Court quietly turn the rule making over to the BOG,

who through stacked committees, write rules in a fashion to ensure their illicit activities can

continue.

44.  In performing this fraud upon the public as outlined in this complaint, the individual

defendants had scienter.  That is, they knew of the falsity of their representations, or had a

reckless disregard as to their truth.

45.  The defendants, in making their misrepresentations to the plaintiff and other

members of the public, intend to induce reliance upon the plaintiff and others so they could

continue their unethical activities.

46.  The plaintiff and other members of the public were ignorant of the falsity of the

representations of the defendants.  The plaintiff and other members of the public have a right to

rely upon the representations of the defendants.  That is, they had justifiable reliance on the

representations of the defendants.
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47.  As a result, of the fraudulent activity alleged in this complaint and the accompanying

statement, the plaintiff and the public are deprived of a fair and just attorney disciplinary system.

Scannell faces harm to his business as a result of not being able to make business decisions free

from outside pressure wrongfully imposed by the WSBA which is a private organization he is

not a member of, has declared him in effect to be a pariah, and therefore has no hope of ever

obtaining a fair hearing.

48.  In addition, the defendants, through a campaign of extortion,  intimidation, and fear,

have conspired to deprive the plaintiff and other attorneys of their right to oppose the unethical

and criminal aims of the WSBA.

49.  The individual defendants, who by their actions sought to perpetuate this fraud

conspired together to perpetuate the fraud.  Each of the defendants acted as agents of the other

defendants and as agents of the WSBA.

50.  The details of how the defendants have engaged in misconduct are outlined in this

complaint.

D.  Typical  victims of the defendants.

51. The specific victims were Doug Schafer, John Scannell, Paul King, Bradley Marshall,

Robert Grundstein, Steven Eugster, Karen Unger, Byron Holcomb, Richard Pope, and Jeffrey

Poole. Evangeline Zandt, Michael Chiofar Gummo Bear, Matthew Little. General victims

include the members of the Washington State Bar Association and the taxpayers of Washington.

The individual attorneys have had their law practices destroyed or severely hindered.  Matthew

Little has had his constitutional right to an attorney taken away because of conduct of Kitsap

Public Defenders Office.  Evangeline Zandt Michael Chiofar Gummo Bear has been jailed and

otherwise harassed for being gay, because the Bar Association will not prosecute his tormentors

for bar violations.  The members of the Washington State Bar Association have been intimidated

into giving up some of their democratic rights as members of the Washington State Bar
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Association.  The public has been damaged as the Washington State Bar Association allows

attorneys to practice in violation of the rules of professional conduct.

52.  Bradley Marshall is an African American Attorney who has filed numerous lawsuits

on behalf of minorities and against the police.  As a minority attorney he attracted the attention

of the WSBA leadership because of his potential to embarrass prosecutors and his potential to

expose the discriminatory practices of the WSBA.  He was also targeted for being a minority.

53.  Stephen Eugster is a Spokane attorney well known for his lawsuits on behalf of the

public interest.  These lawsuits included those that wasted the valuable tax money of the public

such as stadiums for rich sports owners and other so-called public projects funded on behalf of

the public.  These lawsuits attracted the attention of the enterprise, most of whose members

support such waste of the public resources.

54.  Richard Pope is a Seattle attorney who was a political opponent of Christine

Gregoire, who ran against her at least twice for the office of attorney general on the Republican

ticket.

55.  Byron Holcomb is an attorney who is a sole practitioner who is active in supporting

gun rights.  He was told by representatives of the WSBA that he would be targeted for discipline

because of his conservative political beliefs.

56.  Paul Simmerley is an attorney who has been a harsh critic of the WSBA Office of

Disciplinary Counsel.

57.  Jeffrey Poole is an attorney who avoided discipline through four straight trials.  He

was targeted and eventually disbarred because of his opposition to the policies of the WSBA.

E.  History of the misconduct by the defendants.

58.  In 1993, the Washington State Bar’s disciplinary system was scrutinized by the

American Bar Association (ABA).  The ABA issued a report which included among its
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conclusions, that the Washington State Supreme Court should take steps to exert more direct

control over the disciplinary system.  This would include taking steps to distance itself and the

disciplinary process from the WSBA and its BOG.

59.  The report was justifiably critical of the involvement of a professional trade

organization running the disciplinary process as it made attorney discipline subject to the

influences of the internal politics of a trade organization.

60.  Sometime during this era, the leadership of the WSBA conspired to oppose the

legitimate criticism of the ABA and devolve the WSBA into a classic protection racket.  The

leadership of the WSBA would collect fees from the membership in return for “protection” from

clients that would file bar complaints.  Consequently, the WSBA and the defendants have one of

the lowest charging rates in the nation.

61.  In return for this protection, member attorneys were expected to be loyal to the

WSBA, continuing paying dues, and refrain from exercising their democratic rights as members

of the WSBA to oppose the illegitimate activities of the WSBA leadership.

62.  Misrepresentations have been made by the defendants for the past 15 years.  They

have been constantly portrayed themselves in press releases and on their web site WSBA.org.

The following, which is an excerpt from the website is typical of the misrepresentations.

All lawyers admitted to practice law in Washington are subject to lawyer
discipline.
The lawyer discipline system protects the public by holding lawyers accountable
for ethical misconduct.

63.  In 1996 Doug Schafer attracted the attention of the WSBA leadership when he filed a

complaint with the Washington State Bar Association against a corrupt judge, Grant Anderson,

who violated the Rules of Professional Conduct when he was an attorney by illegally milking the

estate of an elderly client.  The WSBA refused to prosecute the judge, claiming there was no

wrongdoing.
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64.  Instead the WSBA leadership began an extortion attempt against Schafer by

threatening to disbar him.  A biased investigation was conducted in early 1999 with the

culmination of the filing of charges against Schafer on May 26, 2009,.  Even though the Judge

was eventually convicted, the WSBA and ODC preselected Schafer for discipline.  The action of

pre-selecting Schafer for discipline was an attempt to extort the democratic rights of WSBA

membership from Schafer to prevent him from exposing the corrupt activities of the defendants.

65.  In 1998, Mr. Holcomb agreed to represent a client for an hourly fee to review files

and make recommendations regarding an equal employment opportunity action that the client

had filed pro se. Mr. Holcomb and the client later signed a second fee agreement in which Mr.

Holcomb agreed to represent the client in an Equal Employment Opportunity Commission

(EEOC) hearing.  When the EEOC denied the client’s claim and the client decided to appeal to

the U.S. District Court, the client and Mr. Holcomb agreed to a contingent fee arrangement and

signed a third agreement.  In 2003, after the District Court dismissed the client’s appeal, Mr.

Holcomb and the client entered into a fourth fee agreement in which Mr. Holcomb agreed to file

a notice of appeal at the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals and seek mediation of the client’s claim.

Sometime in early March 2003, the client and Mr. Holcomb reached an impasse regarding the

representation in the appeal, and Mr. Holcomb withdrew.

66. From December 1999 through March 2001, Mr. Holcomb borrowed from a trust a

total of $52,300 in 24 individual loans. The trust was not a client.  The amount of each individual

loan ranged from $750 to $3,500. Most of the loans were outstanding for no more than two

weeks; the last loan was outstanding for over a year. Mr. Holcomb eventually repaid all of the

loans. The loans were not subject to a written loan agreement, payment of interest, penalties or

fees, or a schedule for repayment of the principal. Mr. Holcomb did not provide security for the

loans.   Since the trust was not a client, there was no need for Holcomb to provide a conflict

statement.  There was never any evidence presented that the trust was a client.  In spite of this,
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the ODC targeted Holcomb for his political beliefs and recommended discipline, for which he

was ultimately suspended.  However, the United States District Court of the Western District of

Washington, never issued a reciprocal suspension, because there was no violation of the Rules of

Professional Conduct.  While conducting his defense to the bar complaints, he discovered that in

all published cases from 1942 until the times of his discipline, all discipline except one case was

directed at sole practitioners.

67.  In 2000, the plaintiff Scannell filed a grievance against Christine Gregoire, who at

the time of the filing of this suit was the governor of the State of Washington.  In this grievance

Scannell charged that Ms. Gregoire was negligent in supervising her subordinate Janet Capps

who failed to file a notice of appeal in a timely fashion, which cost the taxpayers the right to

have a $17 million appeal heard. (See Beckman v. State, No. 25982-6-II (Wash.App.Div.2

08/21/2000) ( “Beckman”.)  At the time, the $17 million judgment was the largest judgment in

Washington’s history.

68.  After filing this and other grievances against Gregoire, the defendants retaliated

against Scannell by harassing him with illegitimate investigations and eventually disbarring him.

69.  After receiving his bar license in May of 2001, John Scannell was an attorney for

Paul King. He had an agreement where he was the attorney for Paul King on virtually all of his

business matters including before the WSBA Disciplinary Board.  He also has an agreement to

represent King in any cases he might have in the ninth circuit.

70.  Since 2002, members of the enterprise reacted with similar malice toward other

attorneys who oppose the illegitimate aims of the enterprise.  In each case, the enterprise acted in

a similar fashion, which was to punish them for opposing the WSBA, in essence, extorting their

rights as members of the WSBA.  At the time of the second amended complaint, the attorneys

included Bradley Marshall, Stephen Eugster, Doug Schafer, Alfoster Garrett, Paul Simmerley,

Paul King, Jeffery Poole, J. Byron Holcomb, Karen Unger, and Robert Grundstein.  In addition,
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defendants Alfoster Garrett and Bradley Marshall had discipline directed at them on the basis of

race.  The actions taken against these attorneys included extortion of their membership rights of

the WSBA.

71.  In 2003, the Washington State Bar Association recommended the discipline of Doug

Schafer

72. One of the motives  WSBA defendants did this to “send a message” to other members

of the WSBA as to what would happen if they stood up to their illicit  activities.

73.  On April 4,  2003, defendant Danielson secretly negotiated a contract where he

would work for the Washington State Bar Association as the “Chief Hearing Officer.”  Members

of the WSBA leadership negotiated the contract to further their goal of domination of the legal

profession of Washington.

74.  Under the scheme as negotiated by members of the enterprise, defendant Danielson

would share a $30,000 salary with defendant Bastian, who was president of the WSBA Board of

Governors.  Since the WSBA was the charging party in cases where members such as the

aforementioned attorneys, this would secretly give the WSBA BOG control over who was

selected as hearing officers.  This would also allow the BOG to set up sham trials for defendants

by pre-selecting judges that were predisposed to making findings of guilt against the political

enemies of the WSBA leadership

75.  In 2004, when one targeted attorney, Jeffery Poole, had his counsel attempt to utilize

the rules to file a protective order against an oppressive request, the disciplinary board ruled on

the motion by refusing to exercise their jurisdiction.  In re Disciplinary Proceeding Against

Poole, No. 200, 193 P.3d 1064, 164 Wash.2d 710 (Wash. 10/09/2008).  An agreement was

reached between Poole’s counsel Kurt Bulmer, and disciplinary counsel, Christine Grey to have

the issue heard before defendant Alexander.

76.  Later, Poole was targeted for discipline in part, because he brought the motion before
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justice Alexander with other members of the enterprise agreeing that bringing a protective order

constituted non-cooperation.  In doing so, the WSBA  ignored the dictates of CR 30, which

suggests that any deposition is stayed while a motion to terminate the deposition is considered.

This was keeping with the WSBA’s policy of seeking enhanced penalties against attorneys who

try to enforce their constitutional rights.  This policy harms all attorneys as it prevents them from

challenging the unfair policies of the WSBA leadership

77.  The Office of Disciplinary Counsel did this to “send a message” to other members of

the WSBA as to what would happen if they stood up to the activities of the WSBA leadership.

The Supreme Court is prevented from seeing this retaliation because it never sees the cases that

are dismissed so they could see the disparate treatment.

78.  On January 14, 2005, WSBA hearing officer Tina Killian submitted her first known

employment application for a WSBA disciplinary counsel position. She then presided in In re

Eric C. Hoort, Pub. File No. 04-00037, without recusing herself or notifying respondent’s

counsel in that case.  Neither James Danielson, the WSBA’s chief of hearing officers, the

WSBA’s disciplinary counsels, nor anyone else at the WSBA took any action after learning of

this and did not remove her from the hearing officer list. By not disclosing her ex parte contacts

she committed misrepresentation by omission, which is a violation of RPC 4.1.  However she

was never held accountable because the conflicts officer excused her even though an

independent outside investigation concluded she had violated the RPC.  Since the Supreme Court

never reviews the rubber stamp decisions of the conflict review officer, there is nothing to

prevent it from happening again.

79.  Also in 2005, members of the enterprise targeted Bradley Marshall for prosecution

for alleged violations of the RPC  violations which led to a suspension on May 10, 2007. The

selection and prosecution of Marshall was racially motivated and an extortion attempt to prevent

Marshall from exercising his rights as a WSBA to prevent and fraud perpetuated by the WSBA
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leadership.  During the prosecution of Marshall, attempts were made by the Office of

Disciplinary Counsel. to bribe the hearing officer as was done in the Killian case.  There is no

effective means to contest this misconduct, because the Supreme Court never reviews the rubber

stamp decisions of the Conflict Review Officer.  There also is no effective means to argue racial

discrimination because the WSBA lacks jurisdiction to hear a discrimination case under either

Title VII or RCW 49.60 and even if it did, could not effectively be a judge of its own misconduct

because of inherent conflict of interest.

80.  In 2005, Office of Disciplinary Counsel began targeting Stephen Eugster for

prosecution of so-called violations of the RPC which led to Eugster’s suspension on June 11,

2009.  The prosecution relied almost entirely on the usually inadmissible testimony of a dead

woman who was probably incompetent.62.  In the summer of 2005, the defendants targeted

Scannell for discipline for conduct supposedly in violation of the Rules of Professional Conduct,

when he represented Paul and Stacy Matthew’s in 2003. The prosecution of the plaintiff for this

type of bar violation was unprecedented entirely motivated by revenge for filing a grievance

against governor Gregoire and for filing his other controversial lawsuits.  The defendants

conspired among themselves to extort the WSBA membership rights from Scannell, so that

members of the enterprise could continue their  activity.

81.  On or before October 18, 2005, plaintiff Scannell was served with two subpoenas

duces tecums requiring him to appear for a deposition pursuant to ELC 5.5 (a subpoena issued

before charges have been filed) to be taken on October 25, 2005.  The purpose of these

subpoenas was to put Scannell in a no-win situation where he could be prosecuted no matter how

he responded to the subpoenas.  Under the scheme, Scannell would be prosecuted either for

betraying the confidence of a client (Paul King), or obstruction for not betraying the confidence

of a client. The WSBA actions included wire fraud, mail fraud, and extortion of Scannell to gain

his cooperation  in the illegal activities of the WSBA.
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82.  On November 10, 2005,  Paul King was served with one subpoenas duces tecum

requiring him to appear for a pre-charging deposition pursuant to ELC 5.5 whose purpose was to

put him in the same “no win” situation as Scannell.

83.  Paul King was then charged, prosecuted, and ultimately disbarred in part, for

objecting to his loss of attorney client privilege.  The prosecution of King was, in part, done to

extort the attorney client information  of King in the illicit activities of the WSBA

84.  On December 5, 2005, Tina Killian was appointed to preside over the Marshall’s

disciplinary case in the Rheubottom matter.  When she was appointed, she failed to disclose her

earlier job application committing misrepresentation by omission under RPC 4.1

85.  In May 25, 2006, the WSBA posted on its Web site an opening for disciplinary

counsel. The next day, Ms. Killian inquired about the open disciplinary counsel opening.  This

letter was an undisclosed ex parte contact forbidden by RPC 3.4 in that she concealed this letter

from Bradley Marshall by not disclosing it.  It was also an undisclosed attempt to solicit a bribe.

86.  On June 1, 2006, disciplinary counsel forwarded an order to Ms. Killian for

signature. Within hours they learned of Tina Killian’s application, but took no action.  The

failure to notify Marshall was an act of misrepresentation by omission, a violation of RPC 4.1.

87.  Meanwhile, in August of 2006, the American Bar Association released another

critical report on Washington State’s lawyer discipline system.  The ABA again criticized the

court for allowing the WSBA BOG play a dominant role in the disciplinary process and

recommended that the court should distance the disciplinary process from the WSBA.  Among

its criticisms were that the “ability of the disciplinary counsel’s office to operate with the

adjudicative function of the system was at risk”.  The report cited the BOG supervisory control

over the Disciplinary Board and the disciplinary counsel as examples of improper political

influence over the disciplinary process and rightfully criticized the WSBA for being the grievant

in many of the cases that came before the Disciplinary Board.
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88.  Beginning on March 28, 2007, and continuing the present time, the defendants, in

began having undisclosed ex parte contacts between disciplinary counsel, the Disciplinary

Board, the Board of Governors and members of the Washington State Supreme Court.  In these

meetings, the defendants attempted to predetermine and fix the cases of its political opponents

such as those mentioned in this complaint and in the accompanying statement.  The defendants

also used these meetings to continue their dominance and control of the discipline process, in

direct opposition to the legitimate criticisms of the ABA and rights of the public at large to fair

and just disciplinary process.  The defendants did this to perpetuate the wire fraud and extortion

of the membership rights of dissidents such as Scannell.

89.  He publicized the payment of sanctions in the Karen Unger case to the rest of the

membership.  In March of 2007, the Bar audited his trust accounts retroactive to 2004.

Eight cases of his clients were involved in his disciplinary proceeding, but he had hundreds of

cases from other clients over a continuous 32 year legal career which were not. Further, Three of

those eight cases were among the top-five most successful he have ever had in his 32 year legal

career, successful results under a variety of very difficult circumstances for an incredibly low

fee. Where the attorney has cases for which he is being subjected to possible discipline as his

most successful in a 32 year career - was unprecedented for the typical disciplinary proceeding

where there is usually bad legal work by the attorney or over-billing or both.

90.  For five years, the Bar conducted an exhaustive, comprehensive audit of his Trust

Account and investigated his practice and contacted and interviewed all of his clients at least

since 2004 and exhaustively litigated these eight matters in the disciplinary proceeding. Yet,

despite all of that, he was ordered to refund money to only one client and that refund was

disputed – because the client had approved in writing his division of her case settlements

proceeds, thanked him profusely and cashed the check he sent her - and her case did not involve

any trust account issues. That case should have been a contract dispute, not a bar violation.
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The money that was in his Trust Account went to the right place and that was done . Further, he

saw to it that the money went to the right place before the Bar Association became involved for

the first time in March of 2007. He did not have to be forced to do this. All of the above was

uncontroverted.

91.  His billing rate was $200 per hour which is well below the going rate for an attorney

of his years in practice and experience. In addition, the total amount of his fees charged to his

clients, obviously the most meaningful figure to a client, has also been extremely reasonable. In

his 32 years of legal practice, in cases where the amount of fees charged by his opposition has

been disclosed, He was not aware of any case where my fees have exceeded my opposition’s

fees None of this was of any concern to the WSBA..

92.  ODC attorneys made misrepresentations to the WSBA Disciplinary Board about the

record from the hearing and his attorney representing him, Kurt Bulmer, failed to timely file a

Reply Brief in his appeal to the Washington State Supreme Court and also failed to timely file a

Motion for Reconsideration, resulting in those important documents not being considered by the

Court.

93.  Had the documents been considered, he would have received a reprimand or perhaps

a small suspension.  Instead he was disbarred and he can not get any remedy because of the

unlawful actions of the clerk Carpenter, who refuses to accept motions to set aside the mandate

or otherwise allow evidence presented to set aside a judgment.

94.  Karen Unger is an aggressive defense attorney who has received national awards for

her work on behalf of defendants.  She was so successful that prosecutors in her area even went

to the unusual extent of having her law offices searched in 1997 as part of a personal vendetta

carried out by local prosecutors to harass her because of her successful work.  A statewide

criminal defense attorney group decried the raid as having frightening implications.  The local

prosecutors could not get a local judge to sign the search warrant and had to go to a neighboring
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county to find a judge to sign the warrant to conduct the raid.

95.  Ms. Unger’s reputation as a good defense counsel attracted the attention of the

Office of Disciplinary Counsel and the WSBA leadership, which is pro prosecutor.   It brought

charges on February 12, 2012, which were so frivolous that the hearing officer who heard the

case stated in his decision that if he could award sanctions he would.  Eventually the WSBA

settled for over $70,000 in sanctions which the membership of the WSBA had to pay.

96.  In 2009 Richard Pope was targeted for discipline when he was “temporarily”

suspended for three years because he raised a mental disability as a defense to some bar

complaints.  Eventually  he was given a reprimand in 2012, but the motive for the three year

non-disciplinary suspension, was political because he a an opponent of Gregoire who is an avid

supporter of the WSBA leadership.

97.  In August of 2009, Scott Busby wrote on behalf of the WSBA before the Washington

State Supreme Court.

The Association further requests that the Court address the issues presented here
when [the court] issues it published opinion in this case to give guidance to other
respondent lawyers who believe they can thwart a disciplinary proceeding merely
by filing a lawsuit against the Association, the Supreme Court, or its members.

98.  Mr. Marshall was not charged with filing a frivolous lawsuit as part of the

disbarment proceedings.  This is clear intent on the part of Mr. Busby and the Washington State

Bar Association as a whole, to retaliate against Mr. Marshall and others as well as submit an

improper “Send a message” argument to the decision-makers

99.  On or about December 24, 2009 Evangeline Zandt filed a bar complaint (WSBA File

#09-01876) against Henry Judson III alleging that attorney Henry Judson III was violating RPC

1.7 by attempting to exploit a conflict of interest to transfer assets from her husband’s

guardianship to another guardianship.
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100.  On January 15, 2010, Henry Judson III responded to the Zandt grievance (WSBA

file #09-01876) by generally denying the allegation without supplying specifics

101.  On March 3, 2010, Evangeline Zandt, responding to a request for additional

information by the bar in WSBA file #09-01876, sent over a hundred pages of documentation

detailing the conflict of interest and providing canceled checks showing that transfer of disputed

funds could be imminent.

102.  On June 21, 2010, the ODC in WSBA file #09-01877 dismissed Evangeline Zandt’s

grievance, claiming she had not responded to the requested information.

103.  Evangeline Zandt subsequently notified the ODC supplying proof of service that

she had supplied the information.  However, the ODC did not further investigate the grievance.

104.  On July 22, 2010 Evangeline Zandt filed an appeal of the denial of the grievance

and filed a bar complaint against the ODC for losing her paperwork.  To this date she has not

received a response to either the appeal or the grievance.

105.  On June 30, 2010, King filed a timely motion for reconsideration.  To date, the

Washington State Supreme Court has yet to rule on King’s motion for reconsideration.

106.  In October of 2010, the Washington State Supreme Court disbarred Scannell.

While the disbarment itself is not the subject for damages, the WSBA through other actions has

further the corrupt goals of the WSBA  by wrongfully “sending a message” to the rest of the

attorneys in Washington as this is what will happen if you do not support the corrupt goals of the

WSBA.

107.  Washington law, as interpreted by the Washington State Supreme Court, denies any

remedy  for the ex parte contacts of that court and for that of the Disciplinary Board as well as a

remedy for the unconstitutional subpoenas..

108.  As a result of the alleged criminal activities of the WSBA, plaintiff Scannell has

been turned into a virtual pariah, incapable of obtaining counsel for even his most basic legal
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needs, because attorneys in Washington are fearful what may happen to them because of the

power wielded by the WSBA.

109.  In early 2011, Scannell discovered that over 300 undisclosed ex parte contacts in

had been made during the prosecution of his case, by various members of the WSBA.

110.  Scannell attempted to have the court to address this issue by filing a motion to

recall the mandate on February 9, 2011.

111.  Washington State Supreme Court Clerk Susan Carlson refused to process the

motion in violation of RAP 12.9 and refused to process the appeal in violation of RQP 17.7.

112.  Similar attempts by Robert Grundstein and Bradley Marshall to request remedies to

set aside orders under CR 60 and ELC 10.1 have similarly been refused for action by the court or

the Disciplinary Board.

113.  Any other attempts to file motions with the court by King or Scannell would be

futile.

114.  Any attempts to adjudicate similar disputes involving misconduct by the defendants

would be futile.  For example, all misconduct by the defendants is required to be reviewed by a

conflicts review officer.  While ELC 2.7 claims that the conflicts review officer is independent,

in fact he is not.  He serves only to rubber stamp the misconduct of the defendants even in the

face of proven misconduct such as the bribery in the Bradley Marshall case.  Even hiring

supposedly independent outside counsel to aid in the determination does no good because of the

close alliance between the conflicts review officer and the defendants.  He is free to ignore any

outside conclusions and in fact does so.  There is no right of appeal of any of his decisions to the

Washington State Supreme Court, making the entire process subject to review by the federal

courts.  The same holds true for other administrative agencies that might claim they have

jurisdiction over some aspect of the grievances.  None of the agencies have any right of appeal to

the Washington State Supreme Court if the grievant cannot convince them to take action.
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115.  Also, since the decision, the plaintiff learned that defendant Tom Chambers was a

former president of the WSBA, who was the grievant in both Scannell’s and King’s disciplinary

matters.  The plaintiff objects to Justice Chambers along with Justice Fairhurst’s participation in

his cases involving discipline and the WSBA.  Since the clerk’s office has indicated that any

further pleadings will not be filed, any attempt to get this issue before the Washington State

Supreme Court would be futile.  There is no state remedy. Any attempts to appeal to the United

States Supreme Court would be futile because the plaintiff can not get the documents for the

appeal into the record and he cannot get a ruling from the Washington State Supreme Court.

116.  Since the decision, the plaintiff has learned of several cases  where the bar

association disciplinary counsel’s has utilized a written policy of not prosecuting defense

counsel for ineffective assistance of counsel unless there has been a judicial finding that such is

the case.

117.  Since the decision, the plaintiff has learned of several cases where the WSBA

disciplinary counsel has utilized ad hoc policies which allow prosecutors, large firms, and other

favored groups of attorneys avoid the rules of professional conduct.  There is no effective

remedy under the disciplinary system in Washington to appeal a failure to prosecute to the

Washington State Supreme Court, this action and policy violates the right to equal protection and

there is  no state remedy.

118.  In regulating discipline, the WSBA has monopoly power granted to it by the

Washington State Supreme Court.  It actively seeks to maintain that monopoly power in many

ways.

119  First, when the ABA attempts to influence the Washington State Supreme Court to

take away the monopoly power, the Board of Governors forms stacked committees that will give

the perception that the majority of attorneys support the anti-competitive conspiracy.  Those who

oppose the conspiracy are singled out for disciplinary action.  Ad hoc policies, both written and
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unwritten are formulated to direct almost all discipline against solo practitioners, minorities and

political opponents of the defendants.  The Chief Hearing Officer pre-selects hearing officers

who are prone to conviction.  In fact, the WSBA defendants pride themselves in obtaining a 97%

conviction rate.

120.  Hearing officers are not paid and this tends to breed corruption susceptible to

control by the defendants.  Since the hearing officers are not paid, at least one  hearing officer

has told a defendant that they don’t want to spend a lot of time on their case, thus denying the

defendant due process.  Since hearing officers aren’t paid, they tend to seek compensation by in

other ways, like seeking bribes as in the Killian case, or political influence so they can get better

paying jobs such as prosecutors, or leniency from the Office of Disciplinary Counsel for their

own bar violations.  In doing so, they are prone to accept the predetermined results desired by

the defendants and others.

121.  April 20, 2011, Matthew Little filed grievance against a Kitsap County defense

attorneys Stephen King(King) (WSBA file #1100661), Michael Raya (Raya)(WSBA file

#1100664), Eric Fong (Fong)(WSBA file #11-00665), and prosecutor Gina Buskirk(Buskirk).

122.  Complaints against King alleged violations of RPC 3.3(a)(1)(4) in that he attempted

to induce Little’s wife to file a false declaration.  King was also charged with advising Little he

could take a certain course in order to satisfy the courts requirement of taking domestic violence

treatment.  After Little spent $250.00 and spent 27 hours in taking the course, the court ordered

him to start over because it was the incorrect course.

123.  Complaints against Raya and Fong alleged violations of RPC 1.4(a)(b) because they

failed to disclose that his wife had stated in writings to the court that there was no domestic

violence or assault in the case, when she was the complaining witness.

124.  Complaints against Buskirk alleged violations of RPC 3.3(a)(1)(4) by making

untrue statements to the court.
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125.  On April 25, 2011, the WSBA dismissed grievance against Raya and Fong on the

grounds that their misconduct involved “professional judgment” and the bar does not reassess

“professional judgment”.  The complaint against Buskirk was dismissed on the grounds her

actions were not in violation of the RPC’s.  The complaint against King was dismissed with

Little being told that when he claims ineffective assistance of counsel, they do not investigate it

unless there is a judicial finding of impropriety.

126.  On or about May 27, 2011, Michael Chiofar Gummo Bear filed grievances against

John Cobb, a King County Prosecutor, (WSBA # 14304) for contacting him without going

through his attorney of record John R. Scannell, claiming a violation of RPC 4.3 which prevents

a lawyer from communicating directly with me about the subject of representation without the

consent of the other attorney.

127.  On or about May 28, 2011, Michael Chiofar Gummo Bear filed a grievance against

Patrick Oishi (WSBA file #11-00921) and Phillip K. Sorenson (WSBA file #11-00922) charging

them with charging a criminal charge without basis in law or fact (RPC 3.1)

128.  On or about June 16, 2011, Michael Chiofar Gummo Bear filed a grievance against

John Cummings (WSBA file #11-01019 ) charging him with obtaining a summons for a criminal

charge without basis in law or fact (RPC 3.1).

129.  On June 28, 2011 Matthew Little filed a grievance against defense attorney David

LaCrosse(LaCrosse) (WSBA file #11-01079) alleging that Lacrosse had showed up at hearings

unprepared and had done little, if any investigations in preparing his case for trial.  .

130.  On June 30, 2011, in response to grievance filed against LaCrosse, the WSBA told

Little that when he claims ineffective assistance of counsel, they do not investigate it unless there

is a judicial finding of impropriety.

131.  On August 1, 2011, the disciplinary counsel’s office rejected Bear’s grievances

against Sorenson (WSBA file #11-00922) and Cummings (WSBA file #11-01019 ), claiming the
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prosecutions were in good faith.

132.  Prior to August 2, 2011, Little filed a grievance (WSBA file #11-01454) against

Charles W. Tibbits alleging ineffective assistance of counsel.

133.  On August 2, 2011, the WSBA dismissed the Tibbets grievance(WSBA file #11-

01454) and told Little that when he claims ineffective assistance of counsel, the WSBA does not

investigate it unless there is a judicial finding of impropriety.

134.  On August 2, 2011, the WSBA dismissed the Jeniece Lacross grievance, telling him

that when charges ineffective assistance of counsel, the WSBA does not investigate it unless

there is a judicial finding of impropriety.

135.  On August 3, 2011, Matthew Little filed grievances against defense attorney

Michelle Taylor(11-01309)

136.  On August 5, 2011, the WSBA dismissed the grievance against Michelle A. Taylor

(11-01309), telling Little do not investigate it unless there is a judicial finding of impropriety.

137.  On August 15, 2011, the disciplinary counsel’s office dismissed Bear’s grievances

against Patrick Oishi (WSBA file #11-00921), claiming the prosecution was in good faith.

138.  On or about August 25, 2011 Little filed a grievance against prosecutor Robert R.

Davy (WSBA file: 11-01289), and appealed dismissals of the grievances against Janeice

LaCrosse, (WSBA file: 11-01290), and Michelle Taylor (WSBA file: 11-01309.

139.  In the case of Davy, Little alleged violations of RPC 1.7(b)(2) (failure to get a

written waiver before representing a client against a former client), RPC 3.8(b), (engaging in

conversations with an unrepresented party without first informing him of right to counsel), RPC

3.8(a). (filing charge not supported by probable cause), all stemming from his representation of

the City of Bremerton in doubling Little’s bail at a time when the court would not provide Little

a counsel in violation of his constitutional right to counsel in a criminal proceeding.

140.  Bar pursuit of Robert Grundstein is an example of the practiced dishonesty and
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organized, institutional deceit an organization which violates Separation of Powers is able to

maintain.

141.  Grundstein was a Vermont resident on inactive WSBA status for the prior 12years.

He had no history of discipline, anywhere. He was not a resident of WA nor was he found in the

state for service. He had no clients and performed no acts under the WA long arm statute. Bar

contrived to file a formal complaint against him which included charges related to motion

practice in other states Bar didn't like. The Formal Complaint asked for "Probation". A

disciplinary hearing was set for Spring of 2011.

142.  Grundstein filed in Federal Court to enjoin the WA hearing. There was no

jurisdiction or venue and the WA subpoena power did not extend to foreign states.

143.  Grundstein couldn't call witnesses under the 6th amendment. The federal court

abstained. At hearing, in violation of "In re Ruffalo", Civil Rule 15 and the 5th Amendment, Bar

amended it's complaint to add 8 additional counts and changed it's requested sanction to

"Disbarment". Grundstein could not get an attorney to take his case.

356.  After hearing, disciplinary counsel removed all Grundstein's evidence from the record. The

evidence was entered over 80 pages of transcript and re-numbered by the hearing officer to suit

her pre-existing numbering system. This included 42 exculpatory exhibits and letters of

recommendation. This was in violation of RPCs 3.3, 3,4 and 3.8. It also violated the 6th

amendment and Grundstein's "Brady" rights. Bar obstructed justice and spoliated evidence to

contrive the lies it needed. It also enlisted a corrupt attorney named Ronald Meltzer who testified

to one of the surprise Complaint amendments.

144.  Grundstein has tried to file corrective motions with the WA Supreme Court. The

Clerk of Court, Ron Carpenter, will not let him file. Grundstein tried a Motion to Recall

Mandate, (recall order of disbarment) which the Clerk would not present to the court.

145.  The clerk felt that a mandate is not the same as an order.
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146.  On November 11, 2011, the Danielson Jefferson firm was fined approximately

$300,000 for RPC violations in the United States District Court Western District of Washington

in case no.  CV-11-023 JLQ, Kelly v. Public Utility District No. 2.  The Danielson Jefferson

engaged in this unethical behavior because they knew that the defendants would protect them

from any repercussion through the WSBA disciplinary system even though a federal court could

sanction them.

147..  Since Scannell cannot get the Washington State Supreme Court to address the issue

ex parte contacts as above alleged, declaratory relief is not available.

148  On at least two occasions since this suit was filed, attorney members of the WSBA

have contacted the clients of Scannell in the ninth circuit and have advised them to fire Scannell

without going through Scannell.  Felice Congalton has condoned those actions to encourage

other attorneys to treat the plaintiff as a pariah, preventing him from freely conducting his

business.

149.  Felice Congalton also freely admits that the Bar does not monitor the racial impact

of the Bar’s selection procedures including disciplinary procedures.  This violates Title VII as

well as equal protection rights under the constitution by steering discipline toward minorities.

CAUSES OF ACTION

CAUSE OF ACTION #1, WRIT OF PROHIBITION

150.  Scott Busby has been conducting secret depositions without notifying parties and

without adequate safeguards to protect attorney client privilege and due process required by

Article I Section 3 of the Washington State Constitution and the Fourteenth Amendment of the

United States Constitution.

151  Scott Busby has failed to join necessary parties in conducting pre-charging

depositions.
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152.  ELC 5.5 is unconstitutional as it does not allow for protective orders to contest the

validity of subpoenas because the parties are not given adequate notice, in violation of Article I

Section 3 of the Washington State Constitution and the Fourteenth Amendment of the United

States Constitution.

153.  ELC 5.5 is unconstitutional as it allows the disciplinary counsel to conduct

investigations which invade the private affairs of the petitioners  in violation of Article I Sections

Three and Seven of the Washington, and the Fourth and Fourteenth Amendments of the United

States Constitution.

154.  ELC 5.5 is unconstitutional as it violates constitutional prohibitions against

unreasonable searches and seizures set forth in Article I, Sections 3 and 7 of the Washington

Constitution and the Fourth and Fourteen Amendment of the United States Constitution.

155.  The plaintiff has no other plain speedy, or adequate remedy at law, and therefore

seek a writ of prohibitions under the Writs Act, chapter 7.16 RCW.

CAUSE OF ACTION #2, WRIT OF MANDAMUS

156.  As a result of the unlawful actions of Gail McMonagle and other Disciplinary

Board Chairpersons the petitioner and others have been denied their right to have their motions

to terminate or limit a deposition heard as allowed by the ELC 5.5(a) and CR 30.

157.  The petitioner and others have no other plain, speedy, or adequate remedy at law.

CAUSE OF ACTION #3, PROTECTIVE ORDER UNDER ELC 5.5

158.  Petitioner and others have sought  protective order as allowed in ELC 5.5 from this

court as the defendants have not processed his complaint to date.

CAUSE OF ACTION #4, INJUNCTION

159.  Scott Busby appears willing to conduct further deposition without due process.

160. Since Scannell cannot get his grievances heard before the Washington State

Supreme Court, he has no other plain, speedy, or adequate remedy at law and therefore seeks
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injunctive relief under the equitable power of this Court provided by Article IV Section 6 of the

Washington State Constitution.

CAUSE OF ACTION #5, DECLARATORY JUDGMENT

161.  The plaintiff and others have been subject to unconstitutional deposition without

due process in violation of Article I Section 3 of the Washington State Constitution and the

Fourteenth Amendment and applicable legislation and rules.

162.  The plaintiff and others have been subjected to unconstitutional invasions of their

private affairs under Article I Section 7, of the Washington State Constitution, and the Fourth

and Fourteenth Amendments of the United States Constitution.

163.  The plaintiff, Jeff Poole Paul King, and others have been subjected to subpoenas

without authority of law and has been subjected to charges without benefit of counsel or access

to cross examination of any potential witnesses, resulting heightened charges against participants

in the review committee process.

164. The WSBA has used ELC 5.5 without having to establish good cause for issuing the

subpoenas.

165.  ELC 5.5 as presently interpreted by the defendants, constitutes an unlawful search

and seizure in violation of Article I, Sections 3 and 7 of the Washington State Constitution and

the Fourth and Fourteenth Amendments of the United States Constitution.

166.  All the contacts were in violation of the Code of Judicial Conduct 1, 2A, and 3A(4)

the Rules of Professional Conduct 3.5b and ELC 2.6(e)(1)(d).  These contacts deprived the

plaintiff of due process of law under the Washington State Constitution.  That the actions of the

individual members of the Washington State Supreme Court violate the Washington Code of

Judicial Conduct 1 and 2A.
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167.  By asserting plenary control the Washington State Supreme Court violated the

concept of an independent judiciary which is a provision of both the Washington and United

States Constitution.

168.  By not disclosing his connections with the WSBA including his contract with the

WSBA and his ex parte contacts, defendant Danielson denied Scannell, Marshall, King and

others due process of law.

169.  By not disclosing that the ex parte contacts with the disciplinary counsel, the Board

of Governors and the WSBA disciplinary board over the issues raised in cases case, the

defendants generally deny all attorneys due process of law.

170.  The defendants through their agent Carpenter, have denied the plaintiff, Marshall,

King, Grundstein and othersany post judgment action on their discipline and therefore denied

them due process of law, as well as any opportunity to appeal to the United States Supreme

Court.

171.  The WSBA defendants,by prosecuting attorneys  using Washington law and

procedures for conduct that is connected with other tribunals deny those attorneys due process of

law.

172.  The WSBA defendants lack long arm jurisdiction to prosecute the plaintiff and

other attorneys for activity in other states, but continue to do so, denying those attorneys due

process of law.

173.  The plaintiff has no other plain, speedy, or adequate remedy at law and therefore

seeks declaratory judgment under the Uniform Declaratory Judgments Act, chapter 7.24 RCW,

declaring that ELC 5.5 is unconstitutional, null, and void.

174.  The plaintiff has no other plain, speedy, or adequate remedy at law and therefore

seeks declaratory judgment under the Uniform Declaratory Judgments Act, chapter 7.24
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declaring that the WSBA lacks long arm jurisdiction to prosecute attorneys for activity in other

states using Washington law.

CAUSE OF ACTION  #6 -VIOLATION OF THE SIXTH AMENDMENT RIGHT TO
COUNSEL AS APPLIED TO THE STATES THROUGH THE FOURTEENTH

AMENDMENT TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION.

175.  The acts and omissions of the defendants herein were done under color of state law,

custom or usage.

1755.  Acts of Scannell forced under compulsion of  state law are subject to redress in

§1983 actions, there being “color of law” within the mean of the statute.

176.  The plaintiff,  Paul King, and others have a federally-protected right to counsel,

whose conversations could not be used against them in a criminal proceeding or in a bar

disciplinary proceeding.

177.  ELC 5.4 requires, John Scannell and others to turn over attorney client information

that had been subpoenaed because they have no right to assert attorney client privilege.

178.  John Scannell, Paul  King and other attorneys have a right to assert attorney client

privilege if they are notified of the deposition.

179.  When the defendants required King, Scannell, and other attorneys to divulge

attorney client privileged information by refusing to give the targeted attorneys notice, it denied

both King,  Scannell and other attorneys the right to attorney client privilege and therefore the

right to counsel in bar disciplinary proceedings.

18.  By denying Scannell, King and others attorney client privilege, the defendants

denied both their  Sixth and Fourteenth Amendment right to counsel in criminal proceedings and

in bar disciplinary proceedings.
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181.  The acts and omissions of defendants herein proximately caused the deprivation of

the First Amendment rights of the plaintiff and others, as applied to the states through the

Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution.

182.  As a proximate result of the acts and omissions of the defendants and the

deprivation of his First, Sixth and Fourteenth Amendment rights, the plaintiff, faces imminent

threats of further violations

183.  The defendants aforementioned violation of attorneys’ constitutional rights entitle

the plaintiff to declaratory and injunctive relief under 42 USC 1983.

CAUSE OF ACTION #7  VIOLATION OF THE PLAINTIFF’S AND OTHER
ATTORNEYS’ RIGHTS TO DUE PROCESS UNDER THE FOURTEENTH

AMENDMENT TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION

184.  Plaintiff John Scannell and other attorneys have a right, under the Due Process

Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution, to a hearing by an

unbiased tribunal before their right to practice law can be taken away.

185.  By making and/or not divulging the ex parte contacts listed above, Danielson, the

Disciplinary Board, Defendant Busby, Disciplinary Board members, Board of Governor

members and individual members of the Washington State Supreme Court denied the plaintiff

Scannell,  King, Marshall, Poole, Grundstein and other attorneys due process of law by not

having their cases heard by a disinterested and neutral judges.

186.  By using  joint counsel with defendant Busby, the Disciplinary Board violated the

constitutional rights of the plaintiff and all other attorneys in at least three ways.  First by having

joint counsel they violated CJC 3.3 forbidding a judge from having joint counsel with an

attorney who appears before them.
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187.  Second, by arriving at a joint response with the defendant Busby, they arrived at

decisions by either having ex parte contacts, or the appearance of ex parte conducts with an

attorney that was appearing before them.

188.  Third, by being able to publicly declare attorney grievances without merit in law

and fact as they are allowed to do under Washington law, they prejudge cases that are pending

before them.

189.  The acts and actions of the defendants herein proximately caused the deprivation of

plaintiff’s and other attorneys Fourteenth Amendment rights.

190.  As a proximate result of the acts and omissions of the defendants and deprivation of

plaintiff’s Fourth Amendment rights, plaintiff and other attorneys face imminent threats to their

livihood as attorneys

191.  The defendants aforementioned violation of all attorneys’constitutional rights

entitle the plaintiff to declaratory and injunctive relief under 42 USC 1983.

IMMINENT HARM

192.  As a result of the  actions of the defendant(s) as above alleged, the plaintiff and

other attorneys face imminent threats to their livlihoods in violation of their constitutional rights

and other rights mentioned in this complaint.

V. PRAYER FOR RELIEF

Wherefore the plaintiff prays

193.  That the pleadings conform to the proof at trial;

194.  That all Washington federal judges disqualify themselves from hearing this case

because they are all members of the WSBA, have formed a close relationship with its leadership

and therefore are potential defendants in the case.

195.  That the court issue a declaratory judgment that the Washington State Disciplinary

system as applied to all attorneys is unconstitutional because of the large number of ex parte



1

2

J

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

t2

13

t4

t5

l6

T7

18

t9

20

2t

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

contacts deprives the plaintiff and others of their right to a fair and unbiased tribunal and for the

other reasons given in this complaint.

196. The defendants be enjoined defamation on their web site, and by any other method

that does not recognize his standing as a licensed attorirey in the ninth circuit court of appeal and

his standing as a lay representative in administrative proceedings.

197. That the court issue a declaratory judgment declaring ELC 5.5 as applied under

Washington law by the WSBA, is unconstitutional

198. That a writ of prohibition and/or injunction issue to Busby and other members of

the WSBA, thatthey should be enjoined temporarily during the pendency of this action and

permanently thereafter from conducting ELC 5.5 depositions without notiffing all persons

whose rights might be affected by the deposition and from subpoenaing documents under such

rule without receiving prior permission of a court authorizedto issue search warrants..

199. That the court issue an injunction against the defendants from engaging in

unconstitutional behavior in the lawyer disciplinary system by having ex parte contacts among

themselves and with the justices on the washington State supreme court..

200. That the plaintiff be awarded attorney fees and costs as allowed by law.

201 . That Plaintiff have such other and further relief as this Court deems just, proper,

and equitable under the full range of relevant circumstances which have occasioned the instant

action.

DATED this 29th day of July,2013.
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